
 

 

 

The Samuel Standfield Family 
 

of 

 

Colonial Pennsylvania 

 

 

(Revised Edition) 
 
  

 

 

 

 
by 

 

Jackie L. Fisher 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2009 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 2 

 

 

 

The Samuel Standfield Family 
 

of 

 

Colonial Pennsylvania 

 

(Revised Edition) 

 

 

 

 

 
by 

 

Jackie L. Fisher 

  
A Descendant 

 

 

 

 
Privately Printed 

 
500 Brinkley Drive 

Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 
Revised 2009 

 

The First Edition, January 1996, Is On LDS Film 2055284, Item 15 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 3 

Halifax

Brighouse

Marple

Patrington
Burstwick

Clitheroe

London

Lurgan

Manchester

Belfast

Ireland

England

.. .

.

Scotland

.

Carthorpe

.

Hepstonstall/Stansfield

..
.

...

 
 

Standfield Points of Origin 

 

 

 

Philadelphia

Marple

Chester

Concord

Pennsylvania

Kennett
....

Nottingham

.

Caln
.

 
 

 

 

Standfield Locations in Colonial Pennsylvania 

 
 

 

 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 4 

 

 

 

The descendants of Samuel Standfield and Jane Andrew  

from Lurgan, in the north of  Ireland, include the Cephas Fisher families of Ohio, Iowa, & Elsewhere, 

 and the Pennsylvania families of   

Fisher, Standfield, and Hammer 

 

 

See also other titles by this author: 

 

 The Francis Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania  

The William Huntley Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

Descendants and Ancestors of Cephas Fisher Jr. (1812-1895) 

A Fisher Family Album -- A History in Pictures 

Searching for the Ancestors of Thomas Fisher of Chester County, Pennsylvania 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

This book may be reproduced without restriction for use in personal genealogical research.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jackie L. Fisher 

500 Brinkley Drive 

Wimberley, Texas 78676 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2009



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 5 

 

 

Contents 

 

 

 
Illustration  -  Location of Quaker Meeting House, Nottingham, Pennsylvania    6 

 

Samuel Stanfield          7 

 

Children of Samuel Stanfield and Jane Andrew Stanfield    19 

 

Marriage certificate for Alice Standfield and James Fisher    20 

 

The Yorkshire Standfields        21 

 

Descendants          23 

 

References          24 

 

Index           29 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pennsylvania

Maryland

O
ct

o
ra

ro
 C

re
ek R

oute 227
Chester County

John Churchman

House

East Nottingham

Meeting House

R
o
u
te

 1

Lancaster County

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Location of East Nottingham Quaker Meeting House 

Near Calvert, Maryland 

(Originally part of Pennsylvania)



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 7 

 

Samuel Stanfield (Standfield) 

 

Samuel Stanfield, a Quaker of Lurgan in Shankill Parish, County Armagh in Northern 

Ireland, was born about 1690.  He married Jane Andrew on November 14, 1711 at 

Lurgan.  Lurgan is at the southern end of Lake Neagh, southwest of Belfast.  Both were 

members of the Lurgan Friends Meeting.  Jane was a daughter of William Andrew Sr. of 

Lurgan.  They immigrated to Chester County, Pennsylvania in 1729. 

 

The Stanfields of Ireland were all of English extraction.  John Stansfield, born about 

1665, of Shore, West Yorkshire, may have been the father of Samuel Stanfield.  Other 

researchers have proposed a link with Squire Samuel Stanfield of Audenshaw near 

Manchester, a Presbyterian.    

 

Historians tell us that virtually all the early population of the northeast counties of 

northern Ireland in the 17
th

 and 18
th

 centuries came from the north of England or 

Scotland.  They came as planters and tradesmen, or as refugees from religious 

persecution.  The Quaker Standfields of Yorkshire
20

 are known to have suffered arrests 

and seizures of property.
21

  It may be that the Stanfields came from the north of England 

and stayed in Ireland no more than one or two generations.  Like many other Quakers, 

they eventually decided to move from Ireland to William Penn’s colony in America, 

where their sect was well-favoured.   

 

The minute books and marriage books of the Friends meetings at Lurgan, Ballyhagan, 

Lisburn, and Ulster Province meetings give some insight regarding Samuel Standfield 

which I did not have at the time of the 1996 version of this book: 

  

Samuel Stanfield is first mentioned by the Lurgan Quakers in 1709.  He may have been a 

son of John Stanfield, who was a member of the nearby Ballyhagan Friends meeting in 

the parish of Kilmore as early as 1701.  The Ballyhagan minute books before 1705 are 

lost, but a note in 1711 referred to past troubles in 1701 regarding John Stanfield.  John 

had a known son Ocran and a daughter Sarah.   

 
1705 10

th
 of 6

th
 month at Ballyhagan 

There being a weighty concern upon friends in this meeting concerning the behaviour of [John] 

STANFIELD least he should in his dealing and commerce with one called Squier Lukas ... being a man 

that hath been bad apt to gett into debte with those that employeth him, ... thought it was needfull to 

send two friends (viz) William Brownloe & William ... the said Lukas concerning him saw need least it 

should happen that he might ... Cause the way of truth to be evill spoaken of - Also to take a testimony 

from ... Sarah STANFIELD daughter of the sd John to that end to see whether ... object why it should 

not be published.  

1705 the 2th of the 9
th

 month at Ballyhagan. 

[John] STANDFIELD haveing not performed according as Expected to James [Lukas] ... in Letting 

him have some winter beans in payment for money being due unto the Sd James Therefore its the desire 

of this meeting that the friends formerly Concerned (viz) Wm Richardson & Robert Barns doe continue 

care and returne their account thereof to the next mens meeting. 

1705 the 14
th

 of the 10
th

 month at Ballyhagan. 
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... before mentioned to speake to John STANFIELD and his son Ocran doth not what things promised 

by them from time to time is duley observed but rather on the contrary not takeing thatt care as they 

ought also what friends might reasonably expected of them, therefore this meeting is under a jealousy 

that friends and truth is in danger of suffering reproach by their actions, so that its the Judgment of this 

meeting that friends draw up a testemony against their proceedings.  Therefore this meeting has 

appointed Wm Brownloe Wm Richardson Francis Hobson and Wm Gray to draw the sd testimony and 

shew it unto them for that end that they may make their objections. 

1711 Att a mens meeting held at Ballyhagan 7 mo: 14. 

There being a diffrance formerly depending betwixt James Tough & John STANDFIELD which they 

refered formerly to some friends Who gave this Judgement theron the 29
th

 of the 11 mo: 1701(1704?) 

which haveing referance thereunto may more fully appeare: And by reason of none performance of 

some parts of the said Judgemt their hath some new controversy araisen betwixt the sd James Tough & 

John STANFIELD & Ocran his son and for to end the same they have mutualy made choise of William 

Richardson Wm Hobson John Williamson & William Gray to end the same and this meeting hath 

chosen William Brownloe Robt Delapp & Jacob Nicholson for their assistance to fully end and 

determine all differances depending betwixt sd partyes.   The persons before nominated have gone 

about it and have done what they well cann untill some things be made more clearly appear by the sd 

parties therfore have referred their Judgmt giveing untill next preparative meeting. 

1711  Att a preparitive meeting held at Ballyhagan 9
th

 mo: 15. 

William Hobson being formerly appointed to disiere Ocran STANFIELD to be at this meeting and he 

not appeareing at this time Therfore ffrancis & William Hobson is disiered to acquaint the sd Ocran to 

be at our next mens meeting and to bring Robt Douglas alonge with him. 

1711  Att a mens meeting held at Ballyhagan 10th mo: 7. 

In Regard severall friends being absent that were appointed to end that diffrance depending betwixt the 

sd James Tough and Ocran STANFIELD therfor the matter is defered untill next preparitive meeting 

And all those before nominated for that buisines to endeavour to be at sd meeting. 

1711  Att a preparitive meeting held at Ballyhagan 10th mo: 27. 

The matter depending betwixt James Tough & Ocran STANFIELD is defered untill this day two 

weeks. 

1711  Att a Mens Meeting held at Ballyhagan 11 mo 18. pg 34 

The friends before nominated about ending the difference .. betwixt Tough and Stanfield have met abt 

and given their .. thereon: In which John & Ocran STANFIELD is obliged to give and signe some 

bonds of several (Gules) of payments of that they were found due unto the sd James Tough but by 

Reason that the sd John STANFIELD could not well come hither to day the matter is deferred untill the 

29
th

 day or 31
st
 Instant.  (Note in margin: Abt Tough & STANFIELD diffrance.) 

1711  Att a Preparative Meeting held at Ballyhagan 12 mo 5.  Pg 34 

Tho the matter abt signing the above bonds was perfixed to either of the above days and for want of the 

sd STANDFIELDs appearance is not yett perfected: therefore this meeting desires William Brownloe 

John Williamson & Robt Delapp to goe with the sd James Tough at some convenient time to John 

STANFIELDs house if so bee that he canot be gott hither and to endeavour to gett the .. bonds signed.  

(Note in margin: Abt Tough & Stanfield diffrance - done.) 

1711  Att a mens Meeting held at Ballyhagan 12 mo 29.  Pg 34 

The bonds that John & Ocran STANFIELD are to perfect unto James Tough are not yett signed 

therefore those before nominated are desired to continue their care therein.  (Note in margin: The bonds 

was signed some time after.) 

1719  Att our mens meeting held in LISBURN ye 28
th

 of ye 11 mo. 

There being an Oakern STANDFIELD that sometimes frequents our religious meetings and by sum 

people are reconed one of us but is of an evill life and Conversation friends of this meeting under 

standing he came from Belihagan side desiers James Morton and Ro: Richardson to make enquiry 

concerning him whether he was denyed or not and if denyed to get a copy of his denyall. 

 

William Marshall of Lurgan was related in some way to Samuel Stanfield.  In 1669, 

William Marshall and his wife Mary, and their son William obtained a tenement lease 

from the Brownlows at Lurgan.  They were Church of Ireland as late as 1679, when 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 9 

William was a People’s Churchwarden of Shankill Parish.  William Jr. and his wife Lydia 

were chastised by the Lurgan Quakers in 1701 as “pretending Quakers.”  When William 

Marshall died in1709, his “relation Samuel Stanfield” helped manage his affairs and gave 

bond for the indenture of the Marshall children.  Attempts were made (unsuccessfully) to 

to contact Marshall relatives in England.  

 
1666  Brownlow Lease Book: Barrowes tenement leased unto William Marshall and William 

Gibson... dated 2d March 1666. Footnote refers to :”Serjeant” William Gibson. 

1666  All that the messuage or tenement whereon he now dwelleth together with a little spot of 

ground adjoining to it leased to William Marshall for 5 years... dated 20
th

 Jul 1666. Footnote says 

William Marshall was a People’s churchwarden of Shankill Parish in 1679 (Church of Ireland in 

Lurgan.) 

1669  Marshall tenement for L3... Mary his wife... William their eldest son... dated 20 Sep 1669. 

1675? That parcell of Balliblagh late in Colters possession being 9 acres...leased to William 

Marshall for his own life his wife Mary and his son William’s lives commencing 25
th

 Mar next...  

1696/7  Att our Particular Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 20
th

 day of ye 11 mo. 

Samuell Franciss belonging to Charlimount meeting and Hannah Bradshaw to this meeting having 

appeared before this meeting and declared their Intentions of Marriage with one another, and 

Charlimount friends Signified to this meeting by certificate tht the Said Samuell hath proceeded 

orderly, and tht they found nothing to hinder ye Said Samuells proceedings, did appoint Robert 

Greer and Jacob MARSHALL to make enquiry ... 

1701  Att a Particular mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 10
th

 day of ye 4 mo. 

The friends tht were appointed last meeting to draw up a testymony against loose behaved 

pretended friends, have done it, which being read in this meeting and thought fitt with some 

amendments to be published, ye following being those tht are Included in one testymony (viz.) 

Abell Weir, Jacob Porter Lanie Pierson Edwd Patteson, gabriel Horner, John Halliday, Grace 

Harding, William MARSHALL & Lydia his wife Richd Dean, Benjamin Shepherd & Ailce 

Wolsey als Webb. (Facing Notes: The said testymony was publickly read on a first day.) 

1709  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 1
st
 of ye 3 mo. 

Robt Hodgson & Samuel STANFIELD are desired to take two neighbours and make an Inventory 

of what little things William MARSHALL has left & secure thm tht they may nott be diminished 

and give account thereof to ye next mens meeting. . (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

1709  Att a Mens meeting held in Lurgan the 25
th

 day of ye 3 mo. 

Robt Hodgson & Samuel STANFIELD have sent account to this meeting, tht they enquired of what 

efects William MARSHALL let, & only found a corse bed tick a boulster, & two Corse pillows in 

James Hildriths valued to three Shill: & one bed stead in Thomas Leathes valued at tenn Shill: 

which friends do not think convenient to meddle with for tht William died in debt, & tht his 

children are nott come to age. 

1709  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 6
th

 day of ye 5 mo. 

John MARSHALL son of William MARSHALL deceased being of ye age of 15 years ye 25
th

 of ye 

last 1 mo being willing by ye consent of this meeting & his RELATION SAMUEL STANFIELD 

to go apprentice to John Robson to learn ye art or trade of a weaver, and John Robson being 

willing to take him, they have agreed tht ye said John MARSHALL shall serve ye said John 

Robson six years from ye first of ye 4 mo last & to furnish with sufficient meate drink washing & 

lodging befitting such an apprentice dureing all ye said terme, and also to pay him ye said John 

MARSHALL ye sum of 16S yearly at times & times for 4 years of ye said 6 years & ye two last 

years ye sum of twenty Shill: each year in order tht he may be furnished with cloths and Samuel 

STANFIELD offering to be bound for ye said John MARSHALLs performance, ye said John 

Robson & Samuel STANFIELD are desired to gett Indentures & bonds perfected according to this 

agreement against next meeting. (Note in margin: see next meeting.)  Joseph Robson, & John 

Turner are desired to write a letter to William Marshalls friends in England giveing thm account of 

his being dead, & how he has left 3 children, & show it to friends before it be sent away. (Note in 

margin: Was done & sent by post.) 
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Other possible Stanfield relatives were the wedding guests in 1711 who were selected out 

of many attendees to name on the wedding certificate (surnames Greer, Henderson, 

Robson, and Dobson).   

 

The Brownlow leasebook for Lurgan tenements shows that the Quaker Meeting House 

was between the Marshall tenement of 1666, and the Logan tenement of 1695.  James 

Logan, son of Patrick Logan, was originally from Scotland.  James became a secretary for 

William Penn and statesman in Pennsylvania.   

 

No record was found of any tenement leased to the Stanfields or Andrews. William 

Andrew was first mentioned in the Lurgan Quaker minutes in 1697, when he and Richard 

Andrew were subscribers to pay for the new meeting house. 

 

The Stanfield/Andrew marriage certificate of 1711 is found in the Ulster Province 

Marriage Book, Page 182/154: 

 
Samuel Stanfield & Jane Andrew both of Lurgan Clanbrazill in the County of Ardmagh, having 

declared their Intentions of marriage with one another before several publick meetings of the peo;le 

called Quakers, whose prcedings therein after deliberate consideration thereof, Enquiry being made 

concerning their clearness from all others, consent of parents and relations concerned being obtained, 

they were permitted to Marry. 

 

Now these are to Certifie all whom it may concern that for the full accomplishing of their said 

Intentions, according to God’s Ordinance the said Samuel Stanfield & Jane Andrew appeared in a 

publick meeting of the said people mett together to worship God in their meeting house in Lurgan upon 

the fourteenth day of the Eighth month commonly called November in the year One thousand Seven 

hundred & Eleven, where being Contracted the said Samuel Stanfield taking the said Jane Andrew by 

the hand did solemnly declare in manner as followeth.  In the fear of God & before this assembly I take 

Jane Andrew to be my wife promising with the Lord’s assistance to be to her a Loving husband till 

death separate us, and then & there in the said assembly, the said Jane Andrew did declare in like 

manner as followeth, In the fear of God & before this assembly I give my self to Samuel Stanfield to be 

his wife & takes him to be my husband promising with the Lord’s assistance to be unto him a loving & 

obedient wife till death separate us. 

 

And as further confirmation thereof, the said Samuel Stanfield & Jane Andrew did hereunto subscribe 

their names as husband & wife, and they whose names are under written being present with many more 

at the solemnizing of their said marriage & Subscription aforesaid, as witnesses have sett their hands 

the day & year above written. 

    Henry Dobson    Samuel Stanfield 

 John Stanfield  Geo: Andrew    Jane Stanfield 

 William Andrew  John Robson 

 Pattr: Henderson  Henry Greer 

 

In August of 1715, William Andrew Jr. was disowned by the Lurgan Quakers, after a 

series of transgressions dating back to 1712.  His wife, Miram Bullock Andrew, remained 

in good standing with the meeting.  

 

In 1729, Jane Stanfield and her sister-in-law Miram Bullock Andrew obtained a 

certificate of removal from Lurgan meeting and emigrated to Pennsylvania early the next 
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year.
 18

  It is not clear exactly how and when their husbands (Samuel Stanfield and 

William Andrew Jr.) emigrated, but they appeared in Pennsylvania at about the same 

time.   

 

Andrew records in the Lurgan minutes: 
 

1697  Att a Particular Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 10th day of ye 6th mo. 

 ... In the year 1695 it pleased God to open ye hearts of ye Friends of this meeting to build a meeting house fit for a province 

meeting or other large meetings – ye usual one formerly made use of being too little and going to decay.  So Friends upon 

several conferences ordered affairs so as tht ye said house is built upon a tenement called Maddern’s tenement on ye south end 

of ye town of Lurgan upon a copyhould lease from Esq. Brownlow, in ye name of Robert Hoope, being for this meeting’s use, 

and likewise two small dwelling houses in ye front of ye said tenement, the cost of which with the meeting house by 

subscription as hereafter mentioned, but what wanted to compleat ye said work was paid out of the collection stock, which was 

but little. 

Robert Hoope being ye chief       Brought Over 

 Promoter over seer &  L   S   d      L     S   d 

contriver   40  --  --      146 10 10 

John Hoope his son  10 15 --   Wm Porter     --   10  6 

Thomas Wainwright  10 10 --   Abell Porter    1    11  -- 

Thomas Walker    8  10 --   Patrick Logan    1    --    -- 

John Walker    4   --  --   John Neile     1      8   -- 

George ffox & Robt Hodgson  9   --  --   John Hendren   --     18  -- 

John Turner & his brother Tho:  7  10  --   Ann Hodgson    1     18  -- 

Jacob Turner    8  10  --   William Lynas    1     18  -- 

John Webb    5   5   --   William Williams    2       2  -- 

James Webb    3   --   2   Roger Kirk    --      9   -- 

John Robson    3   5   --   Francis Hillary    --    12   -- 

Jacob Robson    5  16  --   Benj: Stephen    --      3   -- 

Timothy Kirk    2    1  --   Robt Kirk     --     13  -- 

William Crook    4  10  --   Marmaduke Hillary     1       7  -- 

Robt Robinson    2  15  --   Thomas Bradshaw    --     18  -- 

Allexr Mathews    5   --   --   Ann Bradshaw Widdow    2     --   --  

Ezekiell Bullock    1    8  --   William Bell     --    10  -- 

Christopher Hillary   2   --   8   John Hoope Senr      2    10  -- 

James Greer    3  15  --   John Moreton     --    16  -- 

Richd Mason    3  15  --   Daniell Bullogh     --     11  -- 

Mark Wright    3  15  --     

Carried Over   146 10 10   Carried Over  167 15  4 

And done by Ezekiell Bullock who gives of workmanship throf  to the meeting. 

Brought Over   167 15   4   Brought Over  194   6  6 

Richd Hartley       -- 17  --   Joshua Hoope    --  10  -- 

Roger Webb    1   12    --   James Thomson    --    9  -- 

John Bullow     1    2   --   William Dixson    --    4  -- 

Robt Chambers    15  15  --   James, Will: & Jo: Moreton  --    3  -- 

William Souldan      1    2  --   sons of John Moreton 

Lawrence Allison    --   --  18   James Armstrong    --   10  -- 

William Wetherell     1   8    8   Hannah Bradshaw    --     5  -- 

William ANDREW     1   1    --   Sarah Bradshaw    --     5  -- 

John Cain     --  12   --   James Bradshaw    --      9 -- 

William Gibson   --  11  --   James Milikin      --  12  8 

Robt Sanders   --  10   6   John Beck        2   2  -- 

 Charles Roberts    1  10  --   Thomas Harlan      --   9  -- 

Lawrence Hobs   --  12  --   Richard ANDREW      --   5  -- 

Thomas Turner Senr  --  18  --   Michael Scafe      --   3  -- 

Robt Hoope Junr   --  15  --   Jonathan Gilbert      --   6   8 

Thomas Chapman  --    3  --   Mary Halliday      --   1  -- 

Thomas Williams  --    8  --   Will: Mason   --   5  -- 

Thomas Bullow   --    8  --   Richard Mason Junr   --   5  -- 

John Halliday Senr  --   4   --   James Chambers   --   5  -- 

John Halliday Junr  --   2   --   John Williams   --  10  -- 

Geo: Timmons   --  17  --   Jane Bullow & her da: Kathr  --    5  -- 

Joseph Robison    1  --   --   Mary Rea    --   3  -- 

Simon Bell   --  13  --   Mary Harlan   --   1   6 

Stephen Thomson  --    6  --   Jane Rely (?Rea?)    1  --  -- 

James Hobs   --  12  --   Mary Robinson Junr   --   5  -- 
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Ezekiel Dougall   --  10  --   Kathrine McGee   --   2   6 

Roger Crugiton   --    5  --   Sarah Pierson   --   2   6 

Joell Carr   --    6  --   Elizabeth Robinson    1  --  -- 

Richard Lynas   --  13  --   Mary Porter   --   2   6 

Bridget Walker    1   --  --   Sarah Porter   --   2   6 

George Hodgson   --  10  --   Margaret Brown   --   1  -- 

John Lafleur   --   3  --   Sarah Apleton   --   1   6 

George Thomson  --   3  --   Abigail, Abraham, Hannah Hoope --  15  -- 

          Of John Hoope Junr 

Henry Greer   --   7  --   Daniel Walker   --   5  -- 

         Thomas Wlker Junr   --   2   6 

Alexr Cristy   --  10  --   Jonathan Walker   --   2   6 

John Cristy   --  11  --   John Silcock   --   4  --  

Samuel Kirk   --   4  --   Robt Adams   --   2   6 

Jacob Kirk   --   4  --   Ailce Hartley   --   1  --  

 John Kirk   --   1  --   Abel Weir    --   6  -- 

 Roger Kirk Jr.   --   1  --   Elizabeth Saftlaw   --   1   6 

 Joseph Robson    1 15  --   Ann Mason Junr   --   5  -- 

         Edwd Thornbrough   --   3  -- 

Carried Over              194  6  6   Total                  L208  --   2 

 

1699  Att a particular Mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 26
th

 day of ye 8 mo. 

A difference appearing to rise between William ANDREW and Jacob Turner about a pass throw their 

lands, John Hoope ye elder Allexr Mathews Wm Porter, & Wm Wetherell are desired to accommodate 

ye difference and speedily to use their endeavours to settle ye difference between them in peace. 

(Facing Notes: 10 mo 6 1699 Then ye said friends advised that they had so accomodated matters tht 

they were like to settle in peace.) 

 

1706  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan on ye 13
th

 of ye 9
th

 month. 

George Bell is desird to get John Garvine & his wife to come to next preparative meeting, that they may 

be discourst wth by friends & that sd George also Endeavours to get paymt for turf dellivered to sd 

Garvine by Wm ANDREW.  (Note in margin: was spoke to & a great deal of advice given, to pay Wm 

ANDREW & other things.) 

 

1707  Lurgan ye 23d of ye 5 mo. 

 ... The friends who were appointed last meeting to take account of John Hildriths debts & what he left 

to pay ... ye Widdow & tht John & James Hildrith sons of ye said John deceased will pay ye money, 

sums in some reasonable time giveing their notes Joyntly to each person for ye money till it be paid, 

(tht is to say)  
for 3-14-11 George ffox is willing to take a heifer & 20S in money    1-00-00 

for 0-13-5 Robt Hodgson is willing to take      0- 6- 6 

for 0-2-1¼ Joseph Robson forgives it all      0- 0- 0 

for 0-9-9   Robt Robinson to take    0- 5- 0 

for 0-4-6   Joseph Robinson to take    0- 2- 3 

for 0-1-0   Daniel Robinson to take    0- 0-  6 

for 0-9-11 Alexr Mathews to take a pr of Sole leather     0- 0- 0 

for 0-8-6   Jno Williamson to be Intreated to take two pieces of cured leather 0- 0- 0 

for 0-2-10 Nathaniel Harison to be Intreated to abate something    0- 2- 10 

for 0-1-8   Obadiah Willsons wife ye like    0- 1- 8 

for 0-2-4   Thomas Gilpin ye like     0- 2- 4  

for 0-3-0   William ANDREW Willing to take    0- 1- 6 

            2--2--7 

    As wittness our hands 

    this 23 5 mo 1707  John Hildrith 

        James Hildrith 

 

1709  Att a particular mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 21
st
 10 mo. 

(Note: The following list of book subscribers may apply here.  It is kept as a loose page at the 

beginning of the Book One papers, with no title, page number or date.) 

Wm Williams, Robt Hoope Jun, Wm Gibson, Christ. Hillary, Abell Porter, James Halliday, Robt 

Willson, James Haynan, John Beck, Wm Bell, Fran: Hillery, Ann Bradshaw, Geor. Bell, John Poge and 
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And. Taggart, Alexr Cristy for Menallen, Wm Crook, John Robson, Robt Hoope Sen, John Webb, 

Roger Webb, Will. Wetherill, Will. ANDREW, William Lynas, William Mason, John Williams, Ben. 

Shepherd, Robt Sanders, John Cain, Ann Hodgson, James Robts, Lau. Hobson, Mordecai Barrow, John 

Lockert, Patrick Gogh, John Eager, Simon Bell, James Dixson, Wm Souldan, John Neile, James 

Anderson. All listed (1) except (5) for Alexr Cristy for Munallen. 

 

1711  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 8
th

 day of ye 8 mo. 

Samuel Stanfield & Jane ANDREW both of Lurgan meeting having appeared & laid their intentions of 

marriage with one another & upon enquiry nothing at present appearing to obstruct ye further 

proceedings, Elinor Greer & Marget Mathews being appointed by ye womens meeting to make enquiry 

concerning ye said Jane Andrews clearness & ye mens meeting have appointed Geo: ffox & Jno Turner 

to make enquiry of ye said Samuells clearness, orderly proceedings etc and to give acct how they find 

matters relating thrto to ye next mens meeting.   (Note in margin:  See next meeting.) 

 

1711  At a Mans Meeting held in Lurgan ye 24
th

 day of ye 8 mo. 

Saml Stanfield & Jane ANDREW having appeared ye 2d time & declared ye continuation of thr 

intentions of marriage wth one another before this meeting, Geo: fox & Jno Turner, Elinor Greer & 

Mary Mathew who were appointed last preparative meeting to make enquiry concerning their clearness 

from all others consent of parents & relations concernd, have returnd thr answers tht they have done so 

& finds nothing to obstruct ye proceedings, so this meeting permits them to lay ye said intentions 

before next province meeting, the aforesaid friends to continue their care and give their answers to ye 

said meeting.  (Note in margin: were maried Lurgan ye 14th day of ye 9 mo as certificate may appear.) 

 

1712  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 13
th

 of ye 6 mo. 

Henry Dobson having made complaint to this meeting by Geo: Fox, Jos: Robson & Robt Hodgson tht 

Wm ANDREW detains a sum of money from him due by bond, ye sd friends are desired to speak to sd 

Wm & advise him to do sd Henry Justice imediately, otherwise appear before frds next 4
th

 day.  (Note 

in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 3d of ye 7 mo. 

There being a discourse tht Wm ANDREW should have had some hand in indirectly allowing a bond: 

Geo: ffox, Robt Hodgson & Joseph Robson are desired to speak to him about it that friends may have 

satisfaction how tht matter is.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 24
th

 of ye 7 mo. 

The friends appointed to speak to Wm ANDREW about Henry Dobsons complaint, gives account that 

they have agreed matters but not accomplisht them or perfecting writings conformable to their 

agreement, so the friends are desired to take care to gett tht matter fully done against next meeting.  

(Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  At a preparative meeting held in Lurgan the 15
th

 day of the 8 mo. 

The friends appointed concerning Henry Dobsons complaint of Wm ANDREW being absent was also 

the friends appointed to speak to the said Wm about the bond, being absent that matter is desired to be 

minded next meeting.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 25
th

 day of the 8 mo. 

The matter about William ANDREW both in respect to Henry Dobson and the bond before mentioned, 

not yet being ended nor satisfaction given, George Fox, Joseph Robson & Robert Hodgson are desired 

to remind it.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  At a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 25
th

 day of ye 9 mo. 

The matter about William ANDREW not yet being ended, the friends concerned are desired to use their 

endeavours to gett it ended against next meeting.  (Note in margin:  see next meeting.) 

 

1712  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 17
th

 day of ye 10 mo. 
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The matter about William ANDREW not being ended, notwithstanding ye friends care who have been 

concerned, so John Robson Tim: Kirk and James Greer are desired to assist ye before mentioned 

friends to deal wth ye said William as well for his not ending with Henry Dobson, as about ye Counter 

bond whereof he is suspected to have acted Indirectly.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 7
th

 11 mo. 

Wm ANDREW being abroad ye friends appointed concerning tht matter could not meet with him to 

know what is done, so they are desired to continue their care.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  Att a Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 28
th

 of ye 11 mo. 

The matter relateing to William ANDREW in respect to ye difference between him & Henry Dobson, 

George Fox gives account tht Henry Dobson told him tht it was done so as tht we need not be any 

further concernd about it, but as to tht of ye bond before mentioned, there is no satisfaction given by ye 

said William in tht respect, Wherefore Alexander Mathew is desired to have William ANDREW before 

friends next 4
th

 day.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712  Att a preparative Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 18
th

 of ye 12 mo. 

William ANDREW was before friends according to ye appointment of last meeting  when was ye 

matter about his being concerned in getting a false bond made discoursed ye makeing of which he did 

not deny but tht he knew of it Shuffld & would have excused himself, but George Brown told some 

friends if he caused ye said bond to be made & was guilty thereof, against which practise & consent 

must be placed wherefore friends have dealt closely with ye said William & told him tht if he would not 

place Judgment upon himself, friends must & gave him time to consider thereof til this meeting, butt 

this meeting having received no answer from him so Timothy Kirk & James Greer are desired to tell 

him of his neglecting giveing answer  & satisfaction so if he do not do it agreeable to friends wishes 

either before or at next mens meeting, he may expect Judgment must be placed upon ye transgression.  

(Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1712/13  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 11
th

 day of ye 1 mo. 

William ANDREW haveing sent a paper to this meeting wherein he gives Judgement against himself 

for agreeing to ye makeing of a Counterfeit bond etc which hath been read here & is ordered to be laid 

up amongst ye meetings papers till further occasion appear for makeing it more publick.  (Note in 

margin: ye said paper is in John Walkers hands.) 

 

1715  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 27
th

 of ye 2 mo. 

There being too much cause to fear tht for some time past Wm ANDREW Wm Robson & Margaret 

Simson have violated ye principles of truth, in either being prevailed upon to swear or take an oath, or 

too easily condescended or submitted thereto so as tht what they did, was taken for an oath, without 

bearing their testymony against swearing: so Robert Hoope, Tim: Kirk John Robson, John Walker, 

John Nicholson, Henry Greer, Mordecai Barrow, Robt Hodgson & John Cristy, or some of thm are 

desired to use their endeavours to deal with ye said persons, and to find out ye truth of what is alledged 

against thm in tht case, & acquaint ye next mens meeting threwith tht orderly proceedings may be taken 

to place Judgment upon such disagreeable practises to ye principles of truth: in ye defence whereof 

many faithfull brethren have been great sufferers.  (Note in margin: see next meeting) 

 

1715  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 27
th

 of ye 2 mo. 

The friends appointed to deal with William Andrew William Robson & Margaret Simpson concerning 

their being thought to have taken an oath have spoke to them, who all of them seem to make a Shifting 

deniall tht they did ?whereas? notwithstanding it clearly appears tht they so behaved as tht what they 

did was accepted as by ye Courts, & their Actions proceeded & went on, as Swear.. which is evident tht 

they have not stood faithfull to ye Testimony of truth, in tht case which is cause of reproach, & may be 

a means to bring tryall, & Sufferings upon faithfull friends: so John Walker is desired to draw a 

pertinent testimony against ye said William ANDREW William Robson & Margt Simpson against ye 

next preparative meeting.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 
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1715  Att a Preparative Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 8
th

 of ye 4 mo. 

John Walker hath drawn something concerning William ANDREW, but had not oppertunity to draw 

those against William Robson & Margaret Simson so he is desired to make some amendment to tht 

about William Andrew & to draw up ye other two as soon as he can & show them to friends.  (Note in 

margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1715  Att a Mens Meeting held in Lurgan ye 29
th

 of ye 4 mo. 

The testimony against William ANDREW William Robson & Mary Simpson not yet being compleat its 

desired they may be ready against next meeting.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1715  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 20
th

 of ye 5 mo. 

The testymonies against William ANDREW, William Robson & Margaret Simpson, being read & 

approved att this meeting Robert Hoope, Timothy Kirk, & William Dover are desired to read ye said 

testymonys to thm & return their answers to ye next meeting.  (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1715  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 10
th

 day of ye 6 mo. 

William ANDREW, Wm Robson & Margaret Simpson haveing been dealt with & no satisfactory 

answer from them this meeting orders tht ye testymonies may be recorded in this book, and tht John 

Robson, Robert Hodgson and John Cristy do acquaint them that they are out of fellowship & stand 

denied by us untill they come to repent and give satisfaction to ye church for their transgression.  (Note 

in margin: The said friends did acquaint thm.) 

 

1715  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 10
th

 day of ye 6 mo. 

The testymonies against William Andrew, William Robson, & Margaret Simpson are Recorded on the 

other side: 

Whereas William ANDREW several years agoe Seemd to be convinced of ye blessed truth, came to 

our religious meetings, & Joined himself in fellowship wth us but not keeping in subjection to ye spirit 

of truth wch leads unto all truth, & enables those yt are led & guided by it to order their consversations 

aright, & thereby brings honour to God & draws down his favour & blessing, upon them, When on ye 

(Contrary history & slight & reject ye dictates of this holy Spirit fully into unwatchfullness & gives ye 

enemy ye means hapiness an opportunity to prevail over them & lead them into () as may be said of ye 

Said William, who of late for his ends hath either taken an oath or conformd, so much so & manner of 

takeing it yt it called for an oath, & did not bear a faithfull testimony against Swearing as many of our 

ancient friends & Brethren have done according to our Lord & Saviours command, who saeth swear 

not at all Matt: 1 5
th

 & by their firmness & consistency to observe this & keep a good conscience have 

suffered worry deeply both in body & goods, but ye testimony of truth being dropt by him & thereby 

our holy profession dishonoured & ill spoken of, & do think it our duty to give testimony against ye 

said William for his so doeing & therefore he stands out of unity & followship with us, till he come to a 

sense of his transgression, & walk up more faithfully to our principles as he hath hitherto done in other 

matters besides this for wch he hath been often loveingly admonished, yet persisted in his rough course 

of living contrary to ye peaceable way of righteousness, so tht tho he may out of form, appear as one of 

our Society we have not fellowship wth him, and desires tht what sin, disorderly practice, or 

inconsistent behaviour, to our holy principle yt he acts or committs may be charged upon himself. 

 

1717  At a Preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan the 2d day of the 8 mo. 

William ANDREW & Miriam Bullock after acquainting some friends this day appeared & declared 

their intentions of mariage with each other & nothing at present appearing to obstruct their further 

proceedings Mor Barrow & Henry Greer Sarah Lynas & Sarah Barrow are desired to make inquiry 

concerning their clearness orderly proceedings consent of parents & relations concerned & return their 

answers to the next mens meeting.  (Note in margin: Mariage.) 

 

1717  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 16
th

 of 8 mo. 

William ANDREW and Miriam Bullock haveing appeared a second time & declared ye continuation of 

their Intentions of Mariage, & ye friends appointed being enquired of & nothing appearing to obstruct 
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them they have leave to lay ye same before the next province meeting.  (Note in margin: were maried in 

Lurgan ye 6 day of ye 9 mo 1717.) 

 

1725  At a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 24
th

 of ye 9 mo. 

Account given tht William ANDREW Junr is of a very disorderly behaviour & conversation, 

disagreeable to truth & ye profession he makes thereof so Henry Greer & Thomas Fletcher are desired 

to speak to & deal with him, & return his answer to next mens meeting.  (Note in margin: See next 

meeting.) 

 

1725  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 15
th

 of ye 10 mo. 

Account given tht not so much is done about dealing with William ANDREW Junr as is requisite, so 

the friends appointed are desired to do the rest, and the needful against next meeting.  (Note in margin: 

See next meeting.) 

 

1725  At a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 5
th

 of ye 11 mo. 

Henry Greer gives account tht he & Thomas Fletcher hath not had opportunity since last meeting to 

deal farther with Willm ANDREW Junr, so are desired to mind it against next mens meeting.  (Note in 

margin: See next meeting.) 

 

1725  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 20
th

 day ye 11 mo. 

Henry Greer & Thomas Fletcher gives acct tht they had a further opportunity with Wm ANDREW 

Junr, who confesses his faults, & sais he is sorry for ye same, & promises to take more care of his 

conversation tht it be for ye future more orderly than it hath been, & tht the said Henry & Thomas, are 

desired to acquaint him tht friends will for a time forbear publishing Judgment against him, hopeing tht 

he will make good his promises.  (Note in margin: The two friends did spake again to William & he 

continues his promise of amendment.) 

 

1728  At a mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 5
th

 of ye 1 mo. 

Miriam ANDREW and Jane Standfield having acquainted this meeting tht they Intend to transport 

themselves to America, & desires a Certificate, so Gabril Winter, Sarah Greer & Sarah Hodgson, are 

desired to make enquiry concerning their behavior & return their answer to next meeting.  (Note in 

margin: See next meeting.) 

 

1729  At a preparative meeting held in Lurgan ye 26
th

 of ye 1 mo. 

Gabriel Winter, Sarah Hodgson & Sarah Greer not having yet made full Inquiry concerning ye 

behavior of Miriam ANDREW & Jane Stanfield, are desired to continue their case & return answer to 

next meeting.  (Note in margin: See next meeting.) 

 

1729  At a men’s meeting held in Lurgan ye 16th of ye 2 mo.   

The friends who were appointed to make enquiry concerning ye clearness of Miriam ANDREW & Jane 

Stanfield, in order to have a Certificate to go to America, gives acco’t tht things are not yet so fully 

clear tht they may have them, not but tht ye said Miriam hath behaved so as to deserve one, which 

because of some things in relation to her husbands affairs, its deferred till matters be more clear, which 

Gabriel Winter is desired to acquaint them.  (Note in margin: See next meeting.) 

 

1729  At Lurgan 2 mo ye 23
rd

 .  Friends met according to adjournment.  

Account given to this meeting, tht whatsoever Jumbles has happened between Miriam ANDREW & her 

husband, his father, & sons or others, it doth not appear tht ye said Miriam, hath been so concern’d 

therein whereby she may not have a Certificate, but hath so behaved as tht she may have one, and 

therefore one is granted her, a Copy whereof is in it proper place among ye meetings papers.  (Note in 

margin: Was done.) 

 

There were two Standfield/Stanfield families in colonial Pennsylvania.  The Francis 

Standfield family were also Quakers, who came to Pennsylvania in 1683 from Cheshire in 
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England.
22

  Apparently the two families became associated in Pennsylvania only when a 

great-grandson of Francis Standfield, James Fisher, married Samuel Standfield’s daughter 

Alice in 1736 at Kennett, Chester County, Pennsylvania.  There is some evidence that 

Francis Standfield came from Yorkshire prior to residing in Cheshire.
 21

  Francis was 

probably the son of James Stansfield of Brighouse.  Samuel Standfield of Pennsylvania 

was probably also descended from James of Brighouse.  It is unlikely that the the two 

Standfield families of Pennsylvania were aware of any common ancestry. 

 

Upon arrival in Pennsylvania, Samuel and Jane Standfield settled first in East 

Nottingham, Chester County.  Nottingham had been surveyed and settled on the 

Baltimore Pike as a planned strategy to gain advantage in the border dispute between 

William Penn and Lord Baltimore.  East Nottingham Meeting was established as early as 

1700 by Quakers from the Marcus Hook area of Chester Co., Province of Pennsylvania, 

on a land grant from William Penn called the Nottingham Lots.  The land grant stipulated 

that a small parcel of land be set aside, about 40 acres, for a meetinghouse and graveyard.  

This was done and a log meetinghouse was built.
1

  The location was rather remote for its 

time, being about 50 miles southwest of Philadelphia, almost to Octoraro Creek at the 

western boundary of Chester County.  The final border settlement put the Pennsylvania-

Delaware boundary through the township, leaving the East Nottingham meeting house on 

the Maryland side.  The remoteness, and risk of trouble with native Indians, may have led 

some of the Nottingham settlers to relocate closer to Philadelphia.  Even though William 

Penn’s benevolent and fair dealings with the native peoples had been very successful in 

preserving good relations with the Quaker settlers, tensions and hostilities were growing 

among the general population.  The Quakers themselves were sometimes resented for not 

assisting in subduing the Indians.  For whatever reason, Samuel and Jane decided to leave 

East Nottingham about a year after their arrival.  They moved closer in on the Pike, to 

Kennett, about 30 miles from Philadelphia, in the spring of 1731.  The following entry 

concerning their “certificate of removal” from Nottingham has been preserved.
 11

   

 

At Our Meeting of E. Nottingham held the 20th of ye 1st Mo 1730/31. 

   Samll Stanfield hath requested of this meeting a certificate on behalf of himself & his 

wife to ye mo’ly  meeting of Kennett.  Arthur Barret & John Churchman are therefore 

appointed to make Enquiry in to his conversation & Prepare a Certificate accordingly & 

bring to ye next Mo’ly meeting. 

At our mtg of E. Nottingham held ye 17th of ye 2nd mo 1731.   

  The Friends appointed to make Enquirey into ye Conversation & Circumstances of 

Samll Stanfield have given this meeting an acct yt  they find nothing to obstruct him of 

having a Certificate & have Brought one wch was read, approved & signed at our mtg of 

E. Nottingham.  

 

Samuel and Jane Standfield had six children, Alice, John, Jane, William, Samuel and 

Mary.
 2,10,23

  It is not known with certainty where the first three children were born.  The 

Pennsylvania records imply that the “three younger children” were the only ones born at 

Kennett.  The three oldest children (Alice, John, and Jane) were probably born in the 

north of Ireland before the immigration. 
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The only known studies of  descendants of Samuel and Jane Standfield are those of Alice 

Standfield Fisher and James Fisher.
 23,24

 That line has been traced to hundreds of 

descendants in Ohio, Iowa, Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas, Texas and elsewhere.  An 

interesting possibility is that Cephas Fisher Sr., a grandson of James Fisher and Alice 

Standfield, may have marrried his Standfield (third) cousin.
27

  In 1803, he married Rachel 

Standfield, daughter of Thomas Standfield and Hannah Vernon, in Greene County, 

Tennessee.  Thomas Standfield is likely a descendant of John, the son of Samuel who 

went to Orange County, N. Carolina, although this has yet to be studied.
 16,17

  The 

descendants of the other Standfield family of colonial Pennsylvania, that of Francis 

Standfield, all derive from daughters of Francis.  James Standfield, only son of Francis, 

died in 1699 with no male heir surviving childhood.
 22

 

 

Samuel Standfield and wife Jane probably lived out their lives at Kennett.  They were 

both at the marriage of daughter Alice to James Fisher on Valentine’s Day in 1736.
 6

  The 

birth of their youngest child Mary was recorded in 1738.
15

  Jane was at the wedding of 

son John at Kennett in 1742,
 6

 but Samuel (Sr.) had apparently died by that time.  No later 

records have been discovered for Samuel and Jane. 

 

Jane Andrew was a daughter of William Andrew Sr. of Lurgan, County Armagh, Ireland.  

William Andrew Jr., of Lurgan, emigrated with Samuel and Jane.  When John, son of 

Samuel and Jane, married Hannah Dixon at Kennett in 1742, William Andrews was one 

of the family in attendance.
 6

  William Andrew Jr. had married Miriam Bullock of Lurgan 

meeting at Lurgan, County Armagh in 1717.  George, son of William and Miriam, was 

born 1719 at Lurgan.
4

  In New Jersey, possible relatives are Samuel and Peter Andrews of 

Burlington monthly meeting.
 5

   
   

  

 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 19 

 Children of Samuel Standfield and Jane Andrew Standfield 

 

 

1.  Alice, probably born at Lurgan, County Armagh, Ireland, about 1715.  Resided at 

Nottingham, then Kennett, then East Caln, then York Co. Pa.  Married James Fisher on 

April 14, 1736 at Kennett.  James and Alice moved from Kennett to East Caln (Bradford 

Meeting) in 1741.  (All the Thomas Fisher family relocated about that time, except the 

oldest son William Fisher.)  James & Alice moved to Newberry or Monahan (Warrington 

Meeting) in York County in 1762.  One line of descendancy is known:  (1.Thomas Fisher 

& Elizabeth Huntley [m. Chester Co. Pa.,]  2. James Fisher & Alice Standfield [m. 

Chester Co. Pa.],  3. James Fisher Jr. & Jane Atkinson [m.York Co. Pa.],  4. Cephas 

Fisher & Rachel Standfield [m. Greene Co. Tenn., lived Highland & Clinton Co. Ohio],  

5. Cephas Fisher Jr. & Mary Hoskins [m. Clinton Co. Ohio, lived Indiana & Clinton 

County Iowa], 6.  Samuel Fisher & Effie Van Tassell [m. Mankato, Kansas, d. Okmulgee, 

Okla.] , 7.  Florance C. Fisher & Grace Long [m. Enid, Okla., lived near Morris Okla. & 

other places in Oklahoma & elsewhere], 8.  Woodford P. Fisher & Dorothy Kelly [lived 

near Enid, Okla. & elsewhere, lastly in Mexia, Tx],  9. Jackie L. Fisher & Janice 

Thornton [lived Mexia & Seabrook, Tx). 
8,10,13,20

 
 

 2.  John, probably born at Lurgan, County Armagh, Ireland, about 1721.  Resided at East 

Nottingham, then Kennett in Chester County, Pa.  Married Hannah Dixon (nee Hadley)  

at Kennett Meeting, August 13, 1742, and moved to Hockesin. The family moved to Cane 

Creek, North Carolina in the fall of 1753. John died 1755 at Orange, N. Carolina.
2,6,13,20,27

  

Children John Jr., Samuel, Thomas.
 27

 

   

3.  Jane, probably born at Lurgan, County Armagh, Ireland about 1723.  Resided at East 

Nottingham, then Kennett, Chester County, Pa.  m. John Hammer at Wilmington, 

Newcastle-upon-Delaware County August 11, 1744 and moved to Wilmington.
2,6,13

 
 

 4.  William, b. April 26, 1731 at Kennett, Chester County Pa.  m. Deborah Bruce.  

Moved to East Caln in the spring of 1756 with brother Samuel, where sister Alice Fisher 

and others of the Fisher family had moved in 1740-41. 
2,10,12

 

  

5.  Samuel, b. August 5, 1733 at Kennett, Chester County, Pa.  A sadler by trade, he 

apparently moved from Kennett to East Caln with brother William in the spring of 1756.  

His sister Alice Fisher and others of the Fisher family had moved to East Caln in 1740-

41. Samuel went from Caln to North Wales meeting to marry Mary Martin 10-21-1756.  

In December of the next year Samuel and Mary moved back to East Caln. Samuel started 

with a farm of 60 acres which grew to 100 acres by 1765, and to 130 acres by 1767.  In 

1761, Samuel and Mary moved to Goshen, or at least transferred their membership to 

Goshen meeting.
2,3,10,12,13

 
  

 6.  Mary, b. 1738.5.9, Kennett, Chester County, Pa.
2,10,12

     

 



The Samuel Standfield Family of Colonial Pennsylvania 

 20 

Marriage Certificate for James Fisher & Alice Standfield
6

  

(February 14, 1736) 
 

Whereas James Fisher, son of Tho: ffisher of the Township of Kennett, in ye County of Chester and province of 

pensilvania yoem & Alice Standfield Daughter of Samuel Standfield of the same place having Declared their Intentions 

of Marriage wth each other before several monthly meetings of the people Caled Quakers  including Kennett aforesd and 

at Center in ye County of Newcastle on Delawar, according to the good order used amongst you, and having Consent of 

parents, and parties concerned their said proposials of marriage was allowed of by ye Sd meetings. 

 

Now these are to certifie all whome it may concern that for the full accomplishing their Sd intentions this fourteenth day 

of ye second moth in ye year of our Lord one Thousand Seven hundred & thirty six, they the Sd James Fisher and Alice 

Standfield appeared in a public meeting of ye aforesaid people at Kennett afforesaid And the Said James ffisher 

takeing ye Sd Alice Standfield by ye hand did in Solemn manner openly Declare that he took her ye Sd Alice 

Stanfield to be his Wife, promising with the Lord’s assistance to be unto her a Loveing and faithfull husband until 

death separate them, And then & there in ye same assembly ye Sd Alice Standfield did in like manner declare that she 

took ye Sd James ffisher to be her husband promissing to be in ye Lord’s assistance to be unto her a ffaithfull & Loveing 

wife untill death shall separate them, And moreover they the Sd James ffisher & Alice Standfield, (She according to 

ye Custom of Marriage assuming the name of her Husband as a further Confirmation thereof) did then and there to 

these presents Sett their hands 

         James fisher 

And We whose names are here allso subscribed  Alice ffisher 

being present at the Solomnization of the Sd marriage      

and subscription do as witnesses thereunto sett their  Tho: ffisher 

hands The day & year above written   ##   SamuelStandfield 

         Eliz: ffisher 

Edward Thompson Daniel Few  Margret Miller  Jeane Standfield 

Ellis Lewis  Robert Millr  Mary Lewis  Mary Fletcher 

Guyon Miller  Zarobl thatcher  Judith Hawes  Deborah Bruce 

Wm Harvey  Owen Evans  Ruth Mendenhall John Standfield 

Wm Lewisr  John Hope  Sarah Thatcher  Eliz: ffisher 

Tho: Carlson  Saml ffisher  Joannah Heald  Wm ffisher 

Joseph Mendenhall Tho: Evans  Mary Roberts   

Saml Hollingsworth Jos: Harlan  Lydia Roberts 

Enoch Hollingsworth Jacob Heald   Deborah Roberts  

Wm Noble      Mary Evans  

Joseph Dixson       Eliz: Read    

John Stanton       Susanah ffisher   

Wm ---          

Peter Whitaker       

Joseph Heald   Note:  Typeset here approximates the look of the original certificate  

Benj: Jackson  
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The Yorkshire Standfields
20,21,26

 

 

Samuel Standfield was a Quaker settler who came to Pennsylvania from Lurgan, near 

Belfast, Ireland, in 1729.  He married Jane Andrew in 1711 at Lurgan.  Samuel probably 

came from the Standfield (Stansfield, Stanfeld) family who had been in west Yorkshire 

many generations, with a family seat at Stansfield, in Halifax Parish.  Samuel was a 

probable son of John Stansfield of Halifax, a descendant of James Stansfield of 

Brighouse.  Francis Standfield, another early Quaker settler in colonial Pennsylvania, who 

emigrated from Cheshire, was probably also descended from James Stansfield of 

Brighouse.  If this identification is correct, the two Standfield familes of colonial 

Pennsylvania were related.
 
 

 

The Standfields were in Yorkshire at least as early as 1539, when Margareta Stansfeld 

married Antonius Smyth at Halifax.  One branch, the Thomas Stanfield family, lived in 

east Yorkshire, around Burstwicke and Patrington.  However, most of the family records 

can be found in the Parish of Halifax, in west Yorkshire.  James Stansfield of 

Manckinholes Monthly Meeting, son of James of Brighouse Monthly Meeting, had at 

least six children, Martha, Abraham, Susannah, Joshua, and twins Johnas & Johnathan.  

The first six were born between 1667 and 1683.  Another probable daughter, Mary, 

“daughter of James of Parish Hepton-Stall, Co. York,” married John Barker in 1690.  

Abraham and Lidia Stansfield died in 1669, prisoners at York Castle and were buried at 

Mankenholes.  Deborah Stansfield, “daughter of George,” died in 1669.   

 

John Stansfield, who died at Shore in 1685, had at least two daughters, Lidia and Susan 

who died young in 1670 and 1673 respectively, and at least one son John II.  John II was 

probably the father of Samuel Standfield, who moved to the north of Ireland before 1711 

and emigrated to Pennsylvania about 1729.  John III, son of John II and Mary, was born 

in 1702.  “Mary Stanfield of Blythe” died in 1708.  In 1671, Charles Stanfield was 

arrested with a group of Quakers who had four pounds eight shillings taken in tithes.  

Charles Stansfield died at Shore in 1685.  In 1678, John and James Stansfield were 

arrested and had titheables taken worth four pounds sixpence, including corn, hay, and 

each a piece of Kersey (woolen cloth).  In 1683, one of the John Stanfields was arrested at 

“Stanfield cum Langfield,” and had “four Kine, two Heifers and an Horse, worth 24 

pounds” taken in tithes.  

 

In 1670, Francis Standfield was arrested at a meeting at Cartop (Probably Cutthorpe in 

Berkshire, near the Cheshire line) and had nine pounds taken in tithes.  Francis, probably 

the son of James of Brighouse, emigrated to Pennsylvania in 1683.  In 1681, a Johnathan 

Stanfield was present at a wedding at [?Malersey?]. 
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Thomas Stanfield was imprisoned five weeks in 1652? for “exhorting the People 

assembled at Patterington” and refusing to pay sixpence for tithes.  He was “carried to 

jail” and had goods taken worth six pounds eightpence.  Thomas had at least four 

children, Sabrina, Salamona, Zachariah, and Elisha, all born between 1660 and 1667.  

Thomas died at Burstwicke in 1670. 
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Descendants 
 

Many descendants of Samuel Standfield and Jane Andrew have been documented in 

previous studies.
24

  The studies are all found in the catalog index for the Family History 

Library of the Church of Christ Latter Day Saints (Mormons) at Salt Lake City, Utah.  

Also, this author is preparing a new Fisher family history which will document many 

more descendants.  The Fisher history will be placed in the Mormon library and also in 

the Clayton Genealogical Library in Houston, Texas.  The first version is expected to be 

available in 1996. 

 

Probable ancestry of Francis Standfield, and known descendancy to this author, is as 

follows. 
 

 

[James Stansfield Sr.]          b. [1595], West Yorkshire [Halifax Parish] 

 

 [James Stansfield Jr.]                 b. [1620] West Yorkshire  [Halifax Parish] 

 

  [John Stansfield Sr.]       b. [1643]  West Yorkshire [Brighouse]  

 

   [ John Stansfield Jr.]            b. [1668]  West Yorkshire, [Hepstonstall] 

 

    Samuel Stanfield (m. Jane Andrew)         b.  [1689] [West Yorkshire] 

   

      Alice Standfield (m. James Fisher Sr.)      b .  [1690]  Lurgan, Ireland 

   

       James Fisher Jr. (m. Jane Atkinson)   b. 1744  Chester Co., Pa. 

 

       Cephas Fisher Sr. (m. Rachel Standfield)  b. 1780  York Co., Pa. 

 

      Cephas Fisher Jr. (m. Mary Hoskins)         b. 1812  Highland Co., Ohio 

 

       Samuel Fisher (m. Effie Van Tassell) b. 1857  Clinton Co., Indiana 

 

        Florance C. Fisher Sr.  (m. Grace Long)     b. 1886  Jewell City, Kansas 

 

         Woodford P. Fisher (m. Dorothy Kelly)     b. 1911  Helena, Oklahoma 

 

          Jackie L. Fisher (m. Janice Thornton)     b. 1939  Jett, Oklahoma 

 

            Laura Lynn Fisher   (m. Barry Armer)             b. 1961 Ventura, California 

 

            Kevin Shawn Fisher    (m. Doreen Schmelter)    b. 1964 Houston, Texas 

 

            Jonathan Davis Fisher (m. Alisa Mayfield)         b. 1969 Texas City, Texas 
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13. LDS 0389399  Kennett Monthly Meeting 

      p. 22 John Standfield 7-4-1742  Hannah Dixon 1st time.   

      p. 33 Jane Standfield 7-1-1744  John Hammer & Jane 1st time 

      p. 90, 87 John Standfield with wife & family to Cane Creek N. C.  9-1-1753 
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 p. 162 1741 2-4 Cert Req for Allice Fisher & husband to Bradford.  Mary Lewis & Hannah Carleton 

 enq. 
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15. LDS 0389399  Kennett Monthly Meeting 

      p. 211  Mary Stanfield Cert. cont next mtg. 

      Concord Records: 

      Children of Samuel & Jane Standfield  “the younger children” 

      Wml   4-26-1731 

      Samuel  5-8-1733 

      Mary  5-9-1738 
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17. Pa. Marriages Prior to 1810 

      vol VIII p. 241  1783, Sept 13, Standfield, Henry & Henry Leech.    

 

18. The Immigration of the Irish Quakers into Pa 1682-1750 Albert Cook Myers  Pa Gen 974.8 M996 

      1902 
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19. Ruth Bowers & Anita Short Gen Pub Co 1967-1978  Gateway to the West 
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      Lidia Stansfield d. 1669-10-10 Mankenholes 

      Abraham Stansfield, son of James d. 1669-10-18 Prisonor at York Castle 

      Deborah Stansfield, dau of George d. 1669--12-3 

      Lidia Stansfield, dau of John d. 1670-10-13 

      Susan Stansfield, dau of John d. 1672/3-1-5 

      Thomas Stansfield, d. xx of Burstowel Hull Mm 

      Charles Stansfield, d. 1685-4-4 of Shore 

      John Stansfield, d. 1685-8-22 of Shore 

      p. 44 Sabrina dau of Thomas Stanfield, Laterington b. 14 4m 1660 

      p. 128 Salamona dau of Thomas Stanfield of Lathington b. 20 4m 1660 

      p. 129 Zachariah son of Thomas Stanfield of Lattington b. 13 1m 1664 

      p. 337 Elisha Son of Thomas Stanfield Latterington bur. 1 12m 1667 

      Thomas Stanfield of Burstwicke, bur. 3 12m 1670 

 

21. LDS 0599671, A Collection of Sufferings of the People Called Quakers. Besse 

     vol 1 p. 142 Derbyshire 1670 Taken from Francis Stanfield 9L 0 0 at mtg at Cartop. 

     v.2 p. 136 Charles Stanfield, Halifax, Yorkshire 170/71 Taken from persons dwelling near Halifax  

    Charles Stansfield & others 4L-8-0.   

    (Near Bradford Meeting) 

    v.2 p. 143 1678 Yorkshire Taken in Corn, Hay & other titheables John & James Stansfield & others  

    each a piece of Kersey worth 4L-6s. 

    v.2 p. 152 Yorkshire 1683 At Stanfield cum Langfield from John Stanfield four Kine, two Heifers and 

    an Horse, worth 24L. 

    v.2 p. 153 1683 John Stanfield, & others.  Goods Taken at Langfield. 

    v.2 p. 90 1652 Yorkshire Thomas Stanfield imprisoned 5 weeks for exhorting the People assembled at  

    Patterington.  Refused to pay 6d,  

    carried to jail, goods taken 6L 8d. 
 

22. LDS 962253, Our Family, Thomas M. Potts 1895  

 

23. LDS Electronic Ancestral File 
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24. Fisher histories in the LDS catalog 

      A Fisher Family of Chester County Pa., B. F. Cummings, 1898   

      Families of Fisher, Durnell, Littler, & Zimmerman, Pauline Leslie 1960  

      Atkinson-Fisher English Quaker Emigrants with William Penn, Thelma Fisher 1978   

      The Cephas Fisher Family of Clinton Co. Iowa, Jackie L. Fisher (To be published 1996) 

 

25. LDS 0813512 Derbyshire/Nottinghamshire Monthly Meeting 

     John Stanfield son of John Stanfield & Mary -- was born ye 10th of ye 5th mo 1702. 

     Mary Stanfield of Blythe bur. 28 of 3M 1708, Nottinghamshire. 

     1681 Jno Fisher at wedding of Wm Casson of Malersey? Notts.  Jno Stanfield present. 

 

26.  LDS 0588415  Yorkshire Halifax Friends Records (Brighouse) 

 

27.  Abstracts of Wills, Orange County N. Carolina, Ruth Herndon Shields, Sutro Library San Francisco  
      F262.07 S46 1979. 

       John Stanfield, Wife Hannah, ch. John Jr., Samuel, Thomas 4 Aug 1755, probated Sept 1755. 

      Son John land on Haw River, Thomas land known as Meeting House Tract, Samuel plantation   

      whereon I now live, also land near the Rich Hills to Thomas & Samuel. 

 

28.  Additional MARSHALL References in the Irish Quaker Minute Books: 

 

1702  Att a particular mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 10 th day of ye 7 mo. 

Whereas Barthol: Garnet haveing made some complaint to this meeting tht matters are nott settled 

between James Greer & he, concerning ye land of Broughaloy, ... The Said Barthol: & James have 

each of thm committed, & fully referred ye said matters for ye settling and determining thereof 

unto Wm Whitesile Senr, Jacob MARSHALL, Tim: Kirk, & John Webb they haveing notice & 

regard to ye former accord so farr as matters relateing thereto are mentioned therein to be 

determined before ye next quarterly meeting. 

 

1705  Att a preparative meeting held in Lurgan the 29
th

 day of ye 6 mo. 

Timothy Kirk & John Webb gives account tht they William Whitesile & Jacob MARSHALL have 

agreed concerning ye difference between James Greer & Barty Garnett, so tht we hope it will end. 

 

1709  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 13
th

 day of ye 2 mo. 

William MARSHALL being in a poor weak condition & nott able to releeve himself, Robt Hoope 

& Robt Hodgson are desired to take care to supply him with such necessarys as they may see fitt, 

& charge ye same to ye meetings account. (Note in margin: was supplied butt is since dead, & 

friends gott him a coffin sheet etc.) 

 

1709  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 27
th

 of ye 5 mo. 

The Indentures between John Robson & John MARSHALL are not yet perfected by reason of John 

Robsons being from home, therefore desired to be got done against next meeting. (Note in margin: 

done.) 

Hannah MARSHALL daughter of Wm MARSHALL deceased being of 13 years of age is Willing 

by ye Consent of ths meeting & her relation Saml Stanfield to serve Christopher Hillery six years 

from ye first of ye 4 mo last he agreeing to furnish her wth sufficient meat, drink, lodging & 

Clothing befitting such a servant dureing all ye sd term and att ye Expiration thereof with two 

suites of Clothes to ye sattisfaction of friends as also to give her a heifer with Calfe, providing she 

have not incouragement from her relations in England to transport herself there before ye 

Indentures are made. (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a particular mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 17
th

 day of ye 6 mo. 

No account being yett come out of England from Hannah MARSHALLs friends, whether they 

desire her to go to them or nott; because of which her Indenture nott yett perfected butt waiting to 
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have an answer from them according agreement of last meeting. (Note in margin: see next 

meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 7
th

 of 7 mo. 

No answer being yett come from Hannah MARSHALLs friends out of England, ye perfecting her 

Indentures is yett delayed to see wheather an answer come or nott. (Note in margin: see next 

meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a mens meeting held in Lurgan the 28
th

 day of ye 7 mo. 

No answer yett come from Hannah MARSHALLs friends ye perfecting of ye Indentures is further 

putt of. (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 19
th

 day of ye 8 mo. 

No answer being yett come from Hannah MARSHALLs friends, its doubtfull whether ye letter tht 

was writt to thm gott to their hands or nott, whrefore Joseph Robson & John Turner are desired to 

write another letter to ye same purpose of ye last etc and Robt Hodgson & John Hayes are desired 

to make ye Indenture ready tht they may be signd after a reasonable time is expired tht an answer 

to this second letter may come, if nothing therein when it does come: obstruct. (Note in margin: see 

next meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a particular mens meeting held in Lurgan the 9
th

 day of ye 9 mo. 

Joseph Robson & John Turner gives acct tht they have writt a second time to Hannah 

MARSHALLs friends, butt it cannot yett be expected tht an answer can come, so tht Robt 

Hodgson, & John Hayes are desired to have her Indentures ready against next meeting by which 

time an answer may be expected. (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a preparative mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 30
th

 day of 9 mo. 

No answer yet being come from Hannah MARSHALs friends, nor ye Indentures fully ready, so 

John Hayes is desired to have thm ready against next meeting, tht if then no obstruction appears 

they may be accomplished. (Note in margin: see next meeting.) 

 

1709  Att a particular mens meeting held in Lurgan ye 21
st
 10 mo. 

Hannah MARSHALLs relations haveing sent noe answers to ye letters Writt to them & ye 

Indentures being ready John Turner & Joseph Robson are desired to see them signd, Christopher 

Hillary voluntarily promising that if any answer come with better Incouragement for ye girl he will 

give to her notwithstanding her being bound.  (note in margin: was done) 
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Standfield, Rachel, 18, 19, 23 

Standfield, Samuel, 4 
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Standfield, Samuel, 5 

Standfield, Samuel, 7 

Standfield, Samuel, 7 

Standfield, Samuel, 18 

Standfield, Samuel, 18 

Standfield, Samuel, 19 

Standfield, Samuel, 19 

Standfield, Samuel, 20 

Standfield, Samuel, 21 

Standfield, Samuel, 21 

Standfield, Samuel, 23 

Standfield, Samuel, 24 

Standfield, Samuel, 24 

Standfield, Samuel, 24 

Standfield, Samuel, 25 

Standfield, Samuel, 25 

Standfield, Samuel, 25 

Standfield, Samuel, 25 

Standfield, Samuel, 25 

Standfield, Samuel, 26 

Standfield, Samuel Jr., 17, 19 

Standfield, Samuel Sr., 18 

Standfield, Thomas, 18 

Standfield, William, 17, 19 

Standfield, Wm, 24, 25 

Stanfield, Charles, 21, 26 

Stanfield, Elisha, 22 

Stanfield, Francis, 26 

Stanfield, Hannah, 25, 26 

Stanfield, Jane, 10, 16, 25 

Stanfield, John, 7, 8, 10, 21, 

26, 27 

Stanfield, Johnathan, 21 

Stanfield, Mary, 21, 25, 27 

Stanfield, Oakern, 8 

Stanfield, Ocran, 7, 8 

Stanfield, Rachel, 26 

Stanfield, Sabrina, 22 

Stanfield, Salamona, 22 

Stanfield, Saml, 25 

Stanfield, Samuel, 7, 8, 9, 10, 

11, 13, 17, 23, 24, 25, 26, 

27 

Stanfield, Sarah, 7 

Stanfield, Squire Samuel, 7 

Stanfield, Tenement, 10 

Stanfield, Thomas, 21, 22, 26 

Stanfield, Thomas Sr, 26 

Stanfield, Wm, 25 

Stanfield, Zachariah, 22 

Stansfeld, Margareta, 21 

Stansfield, Abraham, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Charles, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Deborah, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Elisha, 26 

Stansfield, George, 21 

Stansfield, James, 17, 21, 23, 

26 

Stansfield, John, 7, 21, 23, 26 

Stansfield, John II, 21 

Stansfield, John III, 21 

Stansfield, Johnas, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Joshua, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Lidia, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Martha, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Mary, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Sabrina, 26 

Stansfield, Salamona, 26 

Stansfield, Susan, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Susannah, 21, 26 

Stansfield, Thomas, 26 

Stansfield, Zachariah, 26 

Stephen, Benjamin, 11 

  

Taggart, Andrew, 13 

Thatcher, Sarah, 20 

Thatcher, Zarobabel, 20 

Thompson, Edward, 20 

Thomson, George, 12 

Thomson, James, 11 

Thomson, Stephen, 11 

Thornbrough, Edward, 12 

Thornton, Janice, 19, 23 

Timmons, George, 11 

Tough, James, 8 

Turner, Jacob, 11, 12 

Turner, John, 9, 11, 13, 28 

Turner, Thomas, 11 

  

Van Tassell, Effie, 19, 23 

Vernon, Hannah, 18 

  

Wainwright, Thomas, 11 

Walker, Bridget, 12 

Walker, Daniel, 12 

Walker, John, 11, 14, 15 

Walker, Jonathan, 12 

Walker, Thomas, 11, 12 

Way, Jacob, 24 

Webb, Ailce, 9 

Webb, James, 11 

Webb, John, 11, 13, 27 

Webb, Roger, 11, 13 

Weir, Abel, 9, 12 

Wetherell, William, 11, 12 

Wetherill, William, 13 

Whitaker, Peter, 20 

Whitesile, William, 27 

Wilkinson, Joseph, 24 

Williams, John, 11, 13 

Williams, Thomas, 11 

Williams, William, 11, 12 

Williamson, John, 8, 12 

Wilson, Obadiah, 12 

Wilson, Robert, 12 

Winter, Gabriel, 16 

Wolsey, Ailce, 9 

Wright, Mark, 11 

 


